






Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 190,198.00 223,852.00 87,625.08 136,227.76 .84-Teachers Salaries

1120 2,100.00 2,100.00 1,710.00 390.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 65,054.00 66,255.00 23,989.24 36,085.86 6,179.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 77,905.00 76,969.00 25,656.32 51,312.63 .05 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 335,257.00 369,176.00 137,270.64 225,336.25 6,569.11 

2100 79,742.00 74,456.00 31,376.61 47,258.49 4,179.10-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2105 29.00 29.00-Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2120 700.00 700.00 178.05 521.95 Classified Substitutes

2200 10,530.00 10,698.00 4,140.29 7,122.86 565.15-Classified Support Salaries

2220 500.00 .00 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 101,353.00 101,365.00 33,544.80 67,329.60 490.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 130,378.00 130,809.00 44,494.11 86,663.85 348.96-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 9,915.00 9,915.00 1,492.00 8,423.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 333,118.00 327,943.00 113,555.81 210,073.85 4,313.34 

3101 38,714.00 14,729.12 24,074.25 89.37-STRS Certificated Positions

3102 36,635.00 33,475.00 192.68 289.02 32,993.30 STRS Classified Positions

3201 8.29 8.29-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 54,763.00 51,765.00 17,748.24 34,523.65 506.89-PERS Classified Positions

3301 68.00 68.00 11.16 56.84 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,466.00 19,345.00 6,684.68 12,426.98 233.34 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,681.00 5,174.00 1,934.28 3,166.98 72.74 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,667.00 4,539.00 1,589.43 2,948.91 .66 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 88,592.00 85,182.00 31,074.48 49,264.48 4,843.04 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 73,935.00 75,998.00 26,012.68 49,979.95 5.37 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3403 1,000.00 1,000.00 ACA FEES-CERT

3404 1,000.00 1,000.00 ACA FEES-CLASS

3501 234.00 186.00 68.64 112.74 4.62 SUI Certificated

3502 234.00 163.00 56.79 104.20 2.01 SUI Classified

3601 10,976.00 13,530.00 5,064.92 8,292.63 172.45 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,939.00 11,840.00 4,161.74 7,721.40 43.14-Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 305,190.00 341,979.00 109,317.68 192,924.64 39,736.68 

4300 13,306.00 13,780.00 3,645.87 11,424.57 1,290.44-Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 2,972.00 26.88 1,133.33 1,811.79 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 212.84 536.52 250.64 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,705.16 774.45 3,020.39 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  1 2016  8:00AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3403
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3404
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4400 8,459.00 7,123.00 2,336.00 1,864.62 2,922.38 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 29,565.00 30,375.00 7,926.75 15,733.49 6,714.76 

5100 39,626.00 39,626.00 12,819.21 4,275.79 22,531.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 24,854.00 31,087.00 10,716.31 6,778.28 13,592.41 Travel and Conference

5300 17,870.00 18,370.00 400.00 10,437.00 7,533.00 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 7,961.00 1,339.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 2,200.00 3,251.32 3,748.68 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 178.00 472.81 1,949.19 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 8,400.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 Professional Consulting

5801 35,500.00 35,500.00 1,842.50 33,657.50 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 270.00 25.00 298.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 718.30 781.70 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 365,709.00 435,464.00 150,061.73 152,454.51 132,947.76 Contracted Services

5899 2,046.20 1,339.21 3,385.41-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 672.99 927.01 Communications

Total for Object 5000 518,252.00 594,740.00 179,409.75 190,292.11 225,038.14 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 13,100.00 13,100.00 6,289.18 6,810.82 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 43,132.00 43,132.00 6,289.18 .00 36,842.82 

7141 42,224.00 38,111.00 38,111.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 42,224.00 38,111.00 .00 .00 38,111.00 

357,325.85 1,606,738.00 1,745,456.00 553,769.81 834,360.34 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 270,349.00 270,349.00 270,349.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 47,709.00 47,709.00 47,709.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

318,058.00 318,058.00 318,058.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

675,383.85 1,924,796.00 2,063,514.00 553,769.81 834,360.34 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  1 2016  8:00AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=81945&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619




SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

February 9, 2016 
5:00 pm CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 pm REGULAR SESSION 
Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville CA 95936 

This meeting was videoconferenced to 
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

 
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Vice President MIKE MOORE called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
B.  ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT: Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  
    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 
   Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member  
   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member  
 
 ABSENT:  Ms. Patty Hall, President   
 
 VACANT:     None 
     
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

 
 The meeting opened at 5:01 pm and closed without public comment regarding the Closed Session items. 

 
E. CLOSED SESSION 
 

 The Board of Trustees and Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant moved into Closed Session to discuss 
the following item: 

  
1. Government Code §54957 Public Employee Employment Evaluation 
        Employees:  Site Administrator 
 

F. BREAK AND CONVENE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSED 
SESSION MEETING 

 
G. CONVENE SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING AT 6 PM 
 
H. FLAG SALUTE 
 

REPORT OUT – Administrator evaluation was discussed.  
 
I. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 9. 2016 
 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

a. Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program (FYSCP) Dr. Grant explained that the County 
has applied and expects to receive funds to provide programs attuned to foster youth and 
borderline foster youth using counseling and tutoring. 

b. California County Superintendent’s Educational Services Association (CCSESA) Quarterly 
Meeting focused on relationships between counties and districts. Counties focus on LCAP 
and working with their districts. Districts target the areas of budgets and negotiations. A 
major focus was on (ESSA) and the rubrics for evaluating LCAPs (directed to larger 
districts). 

c. Hazardous Materials Inventory Report – Keenan and Associates completed a HazMat 
Report for our schools. 

d. Assignment of Miranda Gunier to Instructional Aide position, Loyalton Elementary School, 
2.5 hours daily, effective February 2, 2016 

e. Friday Night Live Program Advisors 

Position 
Downieville 
Schools 

Loyalton 
Schools Grade  

Friday Night Live 
Shelly 
Fischer 

Gabby 
Lopez 9-12 

Club Live 
Shelly 
Fischer Sue Gressel 7-8 

Friday Night Live 
Kids 

Hillary 
Lozano Erin Folchi K-6 

 
2. BUSINESS REPORT 
 
 Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/15 to 1/31/16. There 

were no comments or questions. 
 
3. STAFF REPORT 

Marlene Mongolo reported on the Extended School Year program for Learning Center students 
in Loyalton.  The program will run in the mornings from June 14 through July 13, 2016 
 

4. SPTA REPORT 
 

5. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT 
 

There was no Board Member Report 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The meeting opened at 6:09 pm for public input and closed without comment.    
 
J.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

The following items were included in the consent calendar: 
 
1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held January 12, 2016 
2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of January 2016 
DRISCOLL/DRYDEN 
4/0 

  



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 9. 2016 
 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

K.  ACTION ITEMS 
 
 1.  Unfinished Business and General Orders 
 
1516-51 Approval of BP 6145, Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities, revision 
  DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
  4/0 
 

2. New Business 
 
1516-52 Presentation of Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association’s Initial Proposal for the  
  2016-17 academic year 
 
1516-53 Approval of Student Accountability Report Card, 2014-15, Sierra County Office of 
 Education 

  DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
  4/0 
 
1516-54 Authorization for Technology Director to attend Out-Of-State Conference, CCENT & CCNA  
 Certification Boot Camp, CBT Express Training, Tampa, Florida Upon stipulation that the 
 technology director remain employed with SCOE for a minimum of 12 months or refund the 
 money to the county office. 

  DRISCOLL/MOORE 
  4/0 
 
  BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
  Motioned to approve Items 1516-55 through 58, 61, 62 and 63 
  DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 
  4/0 
 
1516-55 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4030, Nondiscrimination in 
 Employment, revision 

 
1516-56 Approval of Deletion of Administrative Regulation 4031 Complaints Concerning 
 Discrimination in Employment 

 
1516-57 Approval of Board Policy 4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel, revision 
 
1516-58 Approval of Administrative Regulation  4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave, revision 
 
1516-59 Approval of Board Policy 6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements, revision 
  DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 
  4/0 
 
1516-60 Approval of Board Policy 6152.1, Placement in Mathematics Courses, new 
  DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 
  4/0 
 
1516-61 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6173, Education for  Homeless 
 Children, revision 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 9. 2016 
 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

4 

1516-62 Approval of Administrative Regulation 6173.1, Education for Foster Youth 
 
1516-63 Approval of Board Policy 6179, Supplemental Instruction 
 
L.  ADVANCED PLANNING 
 

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on March 8, 2016, at Sierra County Office of Education, 109 
Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session as needed at 5 pm and the 
Regular Board Meeting at 6 pm. 

 
Suggested Agenda Items 
 
a. Second Interim 

 
M.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourned at 6:42 pm. 
DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
4/0 

 
 
 __________________________   _______________________________  
 Allen Wright, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
        Secretary of the Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2016 through 02/29/2016

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

00014318 02/08/2016 ROSE ASQUITH 01-5200 PER DIEM 91.14 

01-5899 PER DIEM 35.66 126.80 

00014319 02/08/2016 BEST WESTERN HUMBOLDT BAY INN 01-5200 HOTEL ACCOMODATIONS 202.00 

00014320 02/08/2016 MERRILL GRANT 01-5200 PER DIEM/MILEAGE 159.30 

00014321 02/08/2016 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 1,170.00 

00014322 02/08/2016 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 922.65 

00014323 02/08/2016 LESLIE MARSDEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 3,100.00 

00014324 02/08/2016 MATH-U-SEE, INC. 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 314.95 

00014325 02/08/2016 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

4,275.79 

01-5810 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

3,328.31 7,604.10 

00014326 02/08/2016 NATIONAL BUSINESS INSTITUTE 01-5200 REGISTRATION 359.00 

00014327 02/08/2016 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 01-5600 POSTAGE MACHINE 23.50 

01-5899 POSTAGE MACHINE 70.50 94.00 

00014328 02/08/2016 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN              HARCOURT PUBLISHING 

CO.

01-4300 TESTING KIT 849.81 

00014329 02/08/2016 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 120.74 

00014330 02/08/2016 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 FEB 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,506.00 

76-9576 FEB 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 13,182.10 15,688.10 

00014331 02/08/2016 U.S. BANK 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 147.01 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 37.36 

01-4330 NORTON ANTIVIRUS 89.99 

01-4400 APPLIANCES 1,105.28 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 164.21 

01-5899 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 220.08 

Unpaid Sales Tax 10.26- 1,753.67 

00014332 02/08/2016 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 93.85 

00014333 02/08/2016 LEE WALKER D.D.S. 01-4300 TUPE SERVICES 33.75 

00014334 02/08/2016 WORKABILITY REGION 4          SHAWNA PACHECO 01-5200 REGISTRATION 100.00 

00014335 02/08/2016 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 41.82 

Total Number of Checks 18 32,734.54 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 County School Service Fund 18 19,562.70 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  1 2016  8:03AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2016 through 02/29/2016

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

76 Payroll Clearing 1 13,182.10 

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 18 32,744.80 

10.26 

32,734.54 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  1 2016  8:03AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016 – 2017 Proposed School Calendar 

 
Month 

 
Sun 

 
Mon 

 
Tue 

 
Wed 

 
Thu 

 
Fri 

 
Sat 

 
Special Days 

Teacher 
Days 

School 
Days 

AUG 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20  

5 

19 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 25-26 Staff Development 

28 29 30 31    29 First Day of School 

SEP 

     1 2 3 2 Min. Day – PLC 

21 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5 Labor Day Holiday 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17  

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 23 End of 1st Month 

25 26 27 28 29 30 1 30 Min. Day – PLC  

20 
OCT 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  

20 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15  

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 End of 2nd Month 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 26-28 Min. Days – End of 1st Quarter 

19 NOV 

30 31 1 2 3 4 5  

20 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11 Veteran’s Day Holiday 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 Min. Day – PLC 18 End of 3rd Month/1st Trimester 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 23 Min. Day 24-25 Thanksgiving Holiday 

18 

27 28 29 30     

DEC 

      1 2 3  

12 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10  

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 Min. Day 16 End of 4th Month 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 19-30 Winter Break 

18 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31  

JAN 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 New Year’s Holiday 

20 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 16 MLK Holiday 20 Min. Day –PLC/End of 1st Semester 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 27 End of 5th Month 

29 30 31          

18 

FEB 

      1 2 3 4  

18 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11  

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 13 Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 20 President’s Day Holiday 24 End of 6th Month 

26 27 28      

20 

MAR 

   1 2 3 4 3 Min. Day – PLC  4 End of 2nd Trimester 

23 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11  

12 13 14 15 16 17 18  

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 24 End of 7th Month/End of 3rd Quarter 

26 27 28 29 30 31 1  

14 
APR 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 Min. Day – PLC  

14 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 Snow Day 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 17-21 Spring Break 21 End of 8th Month 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29  

20 MAY 

30 1 2 3 4 5 6  

22 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13  

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 19 Min. Day – PLC  19 End of 9th Month 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27  

14 

28 29 30 31    29 Memorial Day Holiday 

JUN 

     1  2 3  

7 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 9 Last Day of School (Min. Day) 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17  

182 180  Total Required Days 

 



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2015-20165-2016 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
2015-2016 First Interim Narrative 

Presented March 8, 2016 
 
REVENUE 
Local Control Funding Formula  
This is the third year the State is funding county offices using the LCFF.  The LCFF is funded by local 
property taxes, Education Protection Account (EPA) and the State.  The EPA ¼ additional sales tax 
expires at the end of 2016 and the increase to personal income tax for high income earners expires at the 
end of 2018.  Although the revenue provides local control the funds do have restrictions/accountability.  
Funds received must support the County’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). Projected LCFF 
sources increased by $667 since the first interim. 
 
Other State Revenue 
Restricted Other State Revenue is projected to increase by $76,243 since the first interim for the following 
reason: 
       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 
• Special Education (Mental Health) $  1,243 
• Foster Youth    $75,000           New Program 

 
Federal Revenue 
Federal Revenue is projected to decrease by $953 since the first interim for the following reasons:  
 
             Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 
• Special Education Entitlement   $   771 
• Special Education Discretionary  ($1,724) 

  
Local Revenue 
Local Revenue is projected to increase by $6,310 since the first interim for the following reasons:  
           
         Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 
• Interest Apportionment   $1,810 
• County of Sierra, Friday Night Live $4,500 

 
 
   

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Actuals 

2014-2015 
Actuals 

2015-2016 
Budget 

2015-2016 
First 

Interim 

2015-2016 
Second 
Interim 

LCFF $  487,590 $  676,265 $939,123 $  871,975 $805,862 $806,529 
Federal  559,883 565,128 509,486 154,051 154,402 153,449 
Other State 517,574 502,506 502,696 606,626 694,811 771,054 
Other Local 283,918 229,394 179,217 176,545 175,209 181,519 
Transfer-in SRS 63,176 56,916 53,084 47,709 47,709 47,709 
Total $1,912,141 $2,030,209 $2,183,606 $1,856,906 $1,877,993 $1,960,260 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2015-2016 
Page 2 of 4 

 

  

 
 
EXPENDITURES 
 
General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures decreased by $42,412 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the Board 
Approved Operating Budget. 
 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Actuals 

2014-2015 
Actuals 

2015-2016 
Budget 

2015-2016 
First 

Interim 

2015-2016 
Second 
Interim 

Certificated $  293,901 $  336,889 $  332,449 $  335,257 $360,837 $384,659 
Classified 336,223 342,356 313,380 333,118 327,243  360,045 
Benefits 307,122 294,194 302,186 305,190 308,112 307,375 
Books & Supplies 21,441 18,078 59,473 29,565 30,375 41,030 
Services & Operating 223,457 328,218 399,782 518,252 541,340 566,063 
Capital Outlay  39,431 13,089 43,132 43,132 43,132 
Other Outgo/Transfer out 618,228 570,533 519,317 42,224 38,111 33,607 
Total $1,800,372 $1,929,709 $1,,939,676 $1,606,738 $1,649,150 1,735,911 

$806,529 
41%

153,449
8%

771,054
39%

181,519
9%

47,709
3%

Total Resources $1,960,260

LCFF

Federal

Other State

Other Local

Transfer-in SRS



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2015-2016 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 
 
 
General Fund – Change and Ending Fund Balance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*includes prior year fund balance adjustments for a total of $57,613 
 
Other Comments 

 
 A positive cash flow for fiscal year 2015-2016 with ending cash balances of $2,618,975. 

 
 Reserve requirement is met for all three years. Positive Certification. 

 
 Secure Rural Schools, aka Forest Receipt reauthorized for the current year and thereafter, revenue 

assumed at 25% PILT.  Projected revenue of $47,709 for the current year and $13,360 for the 
subsequent years. 

  
 Five percent health care premium increase is included in the multiyear budget for certificated 

staff.  All other employees H/W benefit is capped at $13,840. 
 

 Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate for 2015-16 is 86.14%. 
 
 No Child Left Behind MOE Expenditures is projected to be met. 

 
Personnel  FTE 
Certificated  4.00 
Administration    .75 
Classified  6.10  
Confidential  2.90 

$384,659 
22%

360,045
21%

307,375
18%

41,030
2%

566,063
33%

43,132
2%

33,607
2%

Total Expenditures $1,735,911

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Services & Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo

Fiscal Year Net Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

2012-13 audited $  48,594   $1,974,524 
2013-14 audited $  87,388*          $2,061,912 
2014-15 audited $243,930      $2,305,842 
2015-16 projected $228,843 $2,530,191 
2016-17 projected ($10,092) $2,520,099 
2017-18 projected $37,398 $2,557,497 



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2015-2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Multi-Year  

Planning Factor 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
COLA 1.02% .47% 2.13% 2.65% 2.72% 
STRS Employer Rates  10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 18.13% 
PERS Employer Rates  11.874% 13.05% 16.60% 18.20% 19.90% 
Certificated 5% increase based on Premier $16,985 $17,512 $18,066 $18,647 $19,258 

 











































































































































































1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Student Activity Funds 
 
AR 3452  
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
 
Under the general supervision of the site administrator, the following procedures shall be employed in 
dealing with student organization funds and financial transactions. 
 
Student Body Accounts 
 
1. All student body and student organization funds for each school shall be deposited and 
 maintained in and disbursed from a single commercial checking account established at an 
 appropriate bank, except as noted below. 
 

a. The school secretary shall make all deposits. 
 
b. Each such account shall be established under the name Associated Students of  
 (NAME) School. 
 
c. From time to time, upon the recommendation of the Site Administrator, with the approval 

of the Board of Education, a special purpose savings account may be established in the 
 name of a specific student organization when such action seems appropriate. 

 
2.  The school secretary shall maintain detailed records and books showing all of the  following: 
 

a.  The amount of the cash balance in the student body account that belongs to each student 
organization. 

 
b.  All deposits made to the account and to which student organization they should be credited. 
 
c.  All disbursements from the account and to which student organization they are charged. 
 
d.  Date and purpose of each transaction. 

 
3.  The school secretary shall issue receipts for all monies received. 
 
4. All disbursements of student organization funds shall be made by check; cash 
 disbursements are prohibited. 
 
5. The school secretary shall reconcile the periodic statements issued by the bank for the 
 student body account within two weeks after the statement is received. He/she shall 
 balance the student body books at the end of each month and prepare a financial  statement for 



2 

 

each student organization. 
 
6. The Site Administrator will initial and date the bank reconciliation and the bank statement as 
 evidence that they were reviewed and that the totals are identical. 
 
7. The district’s business office will conduct a quarterly review of ASB bank reconciliations 
 prepared at the school sites.  The reviewer will sign and date the reconciliations when the 
 review is complete. 
 
8. Semi-annually the school secretary shall forward a copy of each student organization's 
 financial statement to the District's Business Manager for the period end June 30th and 
 December 31, by the 25th of the following month (July 25th and January 25th). 
 
9.  All checks drawn on the Student Body Account must bear two authorized signatures.  
 Authorized check signers are the Student Body Advisor, the Site Administrator, the  
 Business Manager and the account technician a district office employee. 
 
10. No unsigned checks shall ever be issued to anyone at any time for any purpose. 
 
Student Organization Disbursement Procedure 
 
1. Any disbursement of student organization funds must have the prior approval of a 
 majority of the organization membership as recorded in the official minutes of the 
 organization. 
 
2. A purchase order shall be prepared in duplicate for each disbursement using an approved  form 
 which indicates all of the following: 
 

a. Date of preparation 
 
b. Name of the student organization 
 
c. Name of the vendor 
 
d. Address of the vendor 
 
e. Description of purpose for the disbursement 
 
f. Amount to be disbursed for goods or services 
 
g. Tax and shipping costs where appropriate 
 
h. Name and address of the school involved 

 
3. Both copies of the purchase order must bear the signatures of the student organization 
 advisor, the Site Administrator or designee, and an officer of the student organization. 
 



3 

 

4. One copy of the purchase order is submitted to the school secretary; the second copy goes 
 to the vendor. 
 
5. In cases of local disbursements, the purchase order may be hand carried to the vendor who will 
 provide the goods or services and present a bill to the person presenting the purchase order. 
 Both the purchase order and the bill shall be returned to the school secretary who will verify the 
 purchase. 
 
6. In cases where a vendor receives a purchase order by mail, the school secretary will verify 
 receipt of the purchase and attach the bill or invoice to the office copy of the purchase order. 
 
7. No disbursement check will be issued unless both the bill and the purchase order are in  the 
 school office. 
 
8. Once the above procedures have been completed, the secretary will draw a check for the 
 correct amount on the student body account.  When properly signed, as per Item 6 
 above, the check will be sent to the vendor and the proper amount charged against the 
 appropriate student organization in the school secretary's books. 
 
9. In cases where the vendor is an independent contractor, the school secretary will contact 
 district office in order for payment to be processed through the district's financial system  (Ref: 
 Section Independent Contractor a-g) 
 
Student Organization Cash Income Procedures 
 
1. Faculty Advisor responsibilities 
 

a. Attendance at and immediate supervision of all sales taking place on school sites, such as 
admissions to school activities, and concessions. 

 
b. General supervision of sales off school sites, such as door-to-door sales, yearbook ads, and 

the like. 
 
c. Distribution of tickets or other forms of receipts to students for use in sales, and accounting 

for tickets sold, receipts issued, and reconciling with cash received. 
 
d. Obtaining change and verifying amount prior to activity as described below. 
 
e. Issuing receipts to students for all monies turned in to him/her. 
 
f. Turning in all monies received to the school secretary and obtaining a receipt for same, or 

placing cash in night depository, as appropriate. 
 

g. Verifying cash count as described below. 
 
 
 



4 

 

2. Use of tickets/receipts 
 

a. Every sales transaction must include the issuance of some type of receipt to the payee,  a 
copy or portion of which is retained by the seller, to be turned in to the faculty advisor. 
Concession stand sales are exempt from this requirement. 
 
b. Numbered tickets are to be used where possible and appropriate. 
 
c. Ticket stubs and/or copies of receipts are to be reconciled with cash receipts following  each 
activity. 
 
d. Students issued tickets for sale are responsible for either the return of unsold tickets, or 
 the corresponding monies. 

 
3. Handling of Cash 
 

a.  Cash collected by students is to be turned in daily to the faculty advisor. 
 
b.  The faculty advisor will issue a receipt for cash turned in to him/her as the monies are 

turned in. 
 
c. The faculty advisor will turn in all cash receipts daily to the school secretary who shall 

issue receipts for all monies so received. If a night depository is used, the secretary shall 
issue the receipt the next school day. 

 
d. No cash is ever to be taken home overnight by either a student of any member of the 

faculty. 
 
e. A night depository should be used where available. 
 
f. On the day of an activity and prior to beginning the activity, the faculty advisor will obtain 

the cash box and change from the school secretary. 
 
g. The secretary will draw a check on the student body account for change. A single check 

will suffice for all change needs on a specific date. 
 
h. Upon acquiring the change, the faculty advisor and an organization officer shall 

immediately count it and verify the total amount received on the financial report form 
included with the money. 

 
i.  Immediately following an activity, the faculty advisor and at least one organization officer 

shall count and verify the total amount of cash received. That amount shall be entered on 
the financial report form and verified by the signatures of those people who have counted. 

 
j. All cash receipts shall be deposited by the secretary in the student body account, and credit 

the change and the gross receipts to the proper accounts in the books. 
 



5 

 

Restrictions 
 
1. Deficit spending shall not be permitted. 
 
2.  Borrowing of funds against the student body account or general fund is prohibited. 
 
Independent Contractor 
 
1. The district office will issue all payment to an independent contractor.  This will insure that the 
district is in compliance with state guidelines, districts must report to the Employment Development 
Department within 20 days of either making payments totaling $600 or more, or entering into a 
contract for $600 or more with an independent contractor. The independent contractor information is 
required to be reported on the "Report of Independent Contractors" Form DE542. 
 
2. The secretary will fax or scan to the district office a copy of the purchase order. 
 
3. The district office, account technician, will mail a W-9 form to the independent contractor and 
report to EDD the required information on form DE542. 
 
4.  The secretary will sign, date and state, "okay to pay" on the original invoice received from the 
independent contractor. Both the purchase order and invoice will be forward to the district office for 
payment. 
 
5. The district office will process payment to the independent contractor through their 
 financial system and do all the required reporting to the federal and/or state.   
 
6.  The district office will send a copy of the check to the secretary. 
 
7. The secretary will send a check, payable to the district, and the proper amount will be 
 charged against the appropriate student organization in the school secretary's book. 
 
Annual Audit 
 
1. Annually the Business Manager or designee will conduct an audit for each student body 
 account and prepare an annual summary financial statement for the student body  accounts. 
 
2.  The objective of the audit will be to report on internal controls. 
 
        SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
         SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation  
approved:  April 10, 2007               Sierraville, California 
revised:  February 10, 2009 
revised:  September 14, 2010 
revised:  October 8, 2013        Loyalton, California 
revised;  March 8, 2016 


	1_3_08_16_SCOE_AGENDA.pdf
	2_SCOE Feb2016 ObjSumm.pdf
	3_CDE_PositiveCert.pdf
	4_2_09_16_SCOE Minutes.pdf
	5_SCOE Feb2016 Checks.pdf
	6_2016-17 Proposed School Calendar.pdf
	7_SCOE 2nd Interim Narrative 2015-2016.pdf
	8_SCOE_Second Interim.pdf
	9_AR3452 ASB.pdf

